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The following descriptions are but the briefest of sum-
maries of buildings and sites that deserve many more
pages. Hundreds of hours, of research answered many but
not all of the questions about this interesting area.
The Sausalito News often followed the progress of the
construction of a downtown building from groundbreaking.
The 1924 Assessment Book was of great help in determin-
ing dates. -Sanborn Maps solved some mysteries and
created others. O1d photos were invaluable in the
detective work. Long-time residents’ memories were
prodded about for some of the buildings of the 20’'s,
which there seemed little information. Much remains to
be learned ‘and records are being constantly updated.
additions, corrections, comments, documentation and
photographs would be welcomed.

Becker Building (664-666 Bridgeway) as seen in 1510
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HISTORIC DISTRICT-SAUSALITO

Located on the wooded hillside that slopes sharply to the
western shore of Richardson Bay, the entire town could be
said to be oriented to the view. The panorama sweeps from
the yacht harbors, north to Mt. Tamalpais, east to the
RBelvedere Peninsula, Angel Island, Alcatraz, the East Bay
and to the south--San Francisco’s skyline. The view of the
town from the water is as spectacular as its view of the
water. The most usual comparison is with that of a Medi-
terranean village.

Near water’s edge, the historic central business district
runs principally along Bridgeway--known as Water Street be-
fore 1937 when thé Colden Gate Bridge was built--it is the
main street of town. Along Bridgeway and part of the way
up the hill on Princess Street, small, mainly two-story com-
mercial buildings line the sidewalk. As with many old
small-business areas, the shops .are on the first floor with
living quarters above. These anachronistic little buildings
have miraculously survived the time.

The usual "modernizations" of store fronts has taken place.
gausalito’s burgeoning tourist industry brought about the
departure of the old, family-owned, redident-serving busi-
nesses: hardware store, meat market, dime store, etc.;
eventually all were replaced with tourist oriented shops and
restaurants. Many of these are of a transient nature and as
new enterprises replace other, short-lived businesses, they
often seem to be preceded by painters and carpenters to re-
decorate the interiors but also to make some changes to the
exterior in keeping with the theme of the business--
frequently disregarding the building as a whole.

That Sausalito has escaped the neon and plastic and aluminum
of other California cities is due largely to the caring cit-
izenry plus a conscientious, city appointed, Community
Appearances Advisory Board--later Design Review Board dis-
banded in 1996. Yet, in many cases, two buildings have been
joined as one with new facades, stucco has covered over most”
of the original shiplap Italiante facades, there is evidence
of the asphalt shingle, aluminum and aggregate salesmen.

And in September, 1979, while the Historic District study
was in progress, one building was hastily demolished.
However, the scale, height and character remain.

The portion of the Historic District which is on Bridgeway,
north of Princess Street, can be characterized as two and
three story attached row-buildings, usually 25 feet wide,
that relate to one another in a harmonious way while repre-
senting different styles of architecture and modernizations.
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The two basic time periods represented here are the 1890's (y
and World War I. Individually, only a few of the facades "
show true architectural distinctioh but a tritk of the eye
dismisseés the least of them betause they aré of a shared

scale, height ahd géneral style. Most have in cotmion some

o# all of the following: bay windows, boxed cormices, false
fronts, Italiahte roofline detail, recesbed entiyways, and
trafisoms. Thete aré several Nétable extéptions te this

briéf generalization but in-the intewest of brevity they

will be listed elsewhete. ‘ - :

The northern portion of the district is oriented to a
lovely, siall, triangular park/plaza with a fountain f£rom
the 1915 8an Fraptisco Pamamia Pacific International
Exposition, guarded by large doiicrete elephants, also from
tha expo, and three tall statsly palm trees. The plaza is
filled with shriibs, specimenh trees and flewering plants and
combines the feeling of & Vidtbrian garden with that of a
Meditertranean plaza. Thik impressioh is enhancéd by the
1915 migsion revival style Sausalito Hotel. North and east
of the hotel was the last ‘reminents of the railroad/
ferryboat era--vestigial pilings of the old ferryboat slip,
remdved in 1996 for new ferryboat landing and future
mufidicdipal pier. - : ~

Bridgeway south of Prindess has an unrestricted view of [
Richardsen and San Fraitisco Baysg. The sidewalk runs along - !
the water’s edge with. an zdditional walkway below "Stieet -

level that is inundated at high tide. Yee Totk Chee Park is

~a small multi-level area of concrete and wood pilings built

on the site of the original ferryboat ‘landing (the ferry
"princdesg’, 1868). It is an ideal place from which to view
both the water and a portion of the Digtrict. Two restaur-

ant buildings (a former yacht club and a former boathouse)
built on pilings over the water dreate a turn of the century -
waterfront feeling. i «

The buildings along this portiocn of the street are more
heterogénieous than those of the northern portion. Many were
either built or remodeled in the 19207 s--fiunctional :
‘struetures that suggest thieir origihal uses--stores and
Jarages. Others are representativé of the  "Widtorian” era.
Here as &lsewhere, residential uge is coubined with shops’
arid restaurants. This ‘section of Bridgeway, from Princess
Street to ‘the foot ©f Ridharddon Street is the base of a
steep bluff that very effectively separates the commercial
‘district from the residential. '




Princess Street is the transition between Bridgeway and
MThe Hill". only cone blogk long, it is steep and winding.
At iEs base, a continuation of the type of bulldlngs that .
appear on.Bridgeway, then a gradual tran81tlon te
r551d§nt1al at the top of the street. . At the 1ntersectlon
w1th ‘Bulkley Avenue, on the. south 51de, a smallw,wa@d creek

rgylvgl houge_dsg; set. peaeeﬁully in_ the kregs.:  Two. homes
next to it on Bulkley have been converted to apartments .and
have been included in the District as they are prominent in
early photeographs of &the hildl frem . the water and regmesent

the etylea of.. many early hillgide homeg.

Nook!-- an arched. brlck and terra cotka; entryway Eo:-
ence. a,flne Wallis: Polk desmgmad shlngle style Queen: Anne
Ik was demallshed in 1961.in orxder to build a
large apartment house. The terra cotta medallions bekween
the arches say "Anno Domino', "The Nook" and "1891".

At the top of Prlncessw on Bulkley,iare the "Portals. of theée

Just to the north on Bulkley, the "crawn jewel" of the
digtriet, Lanesmde. Built oenly m@nths after the .Nook was
completedr the style and useroﬁ materlals suggests that
Polk may. have inspired 1ts~des¢gn, as_well. In spite of its
wooded. setting; the house is highly vi l‘;ﬁram:the town

- and wakex. .The.distriet terminates-here: »hough it. eguld
well continue on as there are many notable examples of
resadenblal armh;tecture iz

[

- v Che

#, ALL

ch bord@r Lane81de on
dgaw@y;a The Ffamous

i
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FOREWORD

From the beginhihg-of the ferryboat era in 1868, the atrea we
#ow knbw today as the Sausalito Historic District was the
center of all major activity and commerece “in Bausalite. In
1875, *wheén thé r&ilroad-arrived, it became a buBtling . '
t¥angportatien hub.w By the Twenties, fifty trains and fifty
fer¥ids drrived ahda@epartéd'each.@ay—*saUSa&itb wag the main
Marih-Coufity terminhus. : : C

The dirt streets; verandas and wooden sidewalks of Sausalito
of the 1890’'s are gone, &8 are the rallroads, but the
architectural style of that period profoundly influences the
character of the downtown area. . Many structures have
undargotie ruthless. Faceliftings to "keep up" with the
chahging times, bet-even mafiy of the altered buildings have
kept their distinctive. Italiante rooflines and- upper wihdow
details. ~ ’ .

Ttaliante commercial, an early variation of Northern
Ccalifornia Victorian storefroht architeckture, is
_ characterized by relatively Festrained ekteridr treatment:
bracketed cornices of boxed corniltes with fidezew top false
frontd, -£lat windews have hodds of peditmehts, bay windows
are oﬁﬁenﬂdeéoraﬁeﬁ'with'méaalliﬁnﬁfaﬁ'flatf@oluﬁhgf”
@lassical«éiementS-arewiﬁ¢bﬁp®ratédfin'ﬁhe*mbod trim
Eighty-seven percent '(87%) of the buildinge: in- the Piskxict K
were constructed prior to 1925. A variety of styles reflect
the growth and chinge of Sausalitd! OWiL n~+afr harmphious’
mikxtute whoge secale and heig ; o ‘
of time and place.




‘BRIEF DESCRIPTIONS.AND HISTORIES

558 Bridgeway: HORIZONS/TOPS: This wooden Italiante
structure designed by R.H. White in 1898 for the San Fran-
cisco Yacht Club was a Bay Area center for social and
yachting activities until 1933 when the club moved to
Belvedere. It is built on pilings over the water on the
site of an .earlier yacht club building (destroyed by fire
in 1897) where the town of Sausalitc was incorporated at a
meeting held on September 4, 1893. Restored and enlarged
with the once-open porches now glassed in dining areas, the
dignified "yacht club" style has been maintained and the
Bridgeway facade still closely resembles early photos.

588 Briddgeway: SCOMAS: A long, narrow shiplap structure
built on pilings over the water, built prior to 1891 and
moved in 1923 to present site. The earliest known use was
the M. Lange Launch Co.: launch and tow service, gandwiches,
3 A.M. newspaper boat and later a fuel dock and snack bar.

A favorite Art Colony hangout in the 1950’s known as the TIN
ANGEL, in the 60’s it was known as the GLAD HAND. Enlarged
and altered over the years, this former boathouse has always
retained ‘its distinctive curved backside and false-front
with dropped cornice and spindle and spool decoration.

Foot of Princess Street; YEE TOCK CHEE PARK: Site of the
Ffirst ferryboat landing in 1868 beginning with the ferry
PRINCESS. During World War II, the area was fenced off for
use as a submarine Net Station facility. Long known as
"princess Park" the name was changed in 1977 when the area
was renovated, to honor "Willie Yee," (Yee Tock Chee) a
beloved Sausalito merchant who had generously extended
credit to his customers in lean times. Now an inviting
multileveled space with pilings and textured concrete nooks
that- underscore the marine setting.

660 Bridgeway: HQULIHAN’S/OLD‘PURITY SHOPS: Still referred
to as "The old Purity Store," it’s distinctive arched shape
was the trademark of early supermarket architecture. Built
in 1941, the southern side of the building was remodeled in
1980 using pilings structurally to carry on the theme of tle
adjacent park.

664-666 Bridgeway; ROYAL ARTS CO.: This 1897 structure is
relatively unaltered in a row of buildings that aré for the
most part either newer or have been severely altered.
Flanked by arched facades, it seems all the more sturdy and
straightforward: brick with glanted bay windows, Italiante
details and cast .iron pseudo columns. Highly vigible at its
Princess and Bridgeway intersection, it was built by '
Christopher Becker, businessman and political figure to
house his stationery store with an office above.
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668 Bridgewaiy; ‘TIMBERLEND: The flrst motion plcture theatre
in Sausallto——lt was built in 1915 with a mission revival
gtyle facade.’ Orzglnally the Princess Theatre. it was re-
named the Gate ThHeatre in honodr ‘of the -Gokden Gate Bridge
then under construction {1930’g). -The building has-
undergone . geveral renovations. .Teday a one-and-a-halkf-story
brlck Eacade, replac1ng the stucco.and wood of the past

20 B : SH. /Fhis was the flrst brlck bulldlng
xbullt i, Saueallte‘~18&5 Its: appearance suggests its
original use; FIEDLER’S General Store--a family actiwe in
the conmmerce. . and p@lltlcal affalrs of the town for over 50
years. Distinctive tie rods punctuate this the bxick of
this early structure, and a wooden second story was added in
1980 during a- sersmlc retroflt e

. 676-6886.:Bridgeway;. : /S ST : EAMIS: A
.facade =mo altered frem the. cnlglnal as to nat Seem the'
gsame building(s).: Originally two square-bay BEastlake style

building congtructed in 1885 .and 1889 by Uacob Schnell to
house the pogt office, news depot, and Bay City Marxket--the
southern portion was the first two-story brick strucdture in
Sausalito. John Schnell wasg the .first postmaster in 1870.

- 688 Bridgeway; SAUSALITO FERRY COMPANY: New construction
(¥97%) . Originally the alléywaY'Eo *the :Ferny Garage-=a
narrow, odd - shapeé'space. In 1%28;.¢t was “eovered over for
a cigar store in front and a spéakeasy .dn.back, sac¢ed¥ding to
local memeries. Later it houseéd the Sausalito:News;. :
following that the Four Winds Barx, and until its demise, the
Two-Firtlesd. -Foddy & one-dnd-a-half-story glass and. stucco
facade which £its well between the two-story bBuildings to
thesnerth and -south.

AUSAE: TEL: Built-inm 19l5 the'
mission-revival roofllne of thls two-story hotel is a
motable contyibution to . .the silhouekte of Sawsalito. It is-
codmplemented by the Viecboran/Mediterranesn pla¥a across the
"street,? PLAZA VINA .DEL MAR. Overall appearance .is much the
samesas the oridiginal; “storefront, entramces and windows on
the ground floar have been medified--in this case to .be more
in keeping with the mission-style architecturxe than they
were orlglnally Site of the Arbordale, a German beer
garﬂen. ‘ ' : . BT ‘

28. El PortalfJMAGKEﬁS¢ Built in 1916 by .Nerthwestewn
Pacifie Railwoad-~originally assmall, wtilitazrian strdcture
houwgdng . B SXPress office with.an entramce to tlEg ‘adjoining
.gaxage. . The (U.S.. Post @ffiece was located here fdr
epprox1mately fifteen. years ‘until @1958. The buklding was
‘extengively remiodeled.im 19260 and . reflects the “rectangular
architecture of that period.
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30 El Portal: INN‘ABOVE'THE TIDES: Built in 1962 as an
apartment building, it's natural wood exterior and
architecture blends well with landscape and older buildings.
The site of the Ferry. Garage, adjacent to the railroad/
ferryboat terminal. It has been recently renovated into a
hotel. : :

FERRYBOAT LANDING: The railroad dominated Sausalito’s
waterfront from its early days--tracks, apparatus and
buildings. .The original. North Pacific Coast depot .occupied
this site in 1875. In 1903, North Shore Railroad bullt a
handsome two-story Neo-classical revival depot--demolished
in @1945. North-western Pacific operated its train and
Ferries here from 1907-1941. The last vestige of this
bustling terminal--the pilings and gallows were removed in
1996 to make way for new ferry landing and future municipal
pier. .

PLAYA VINA DEL MAR: This park site was given to the City by
North Shore Railroad in 1904--filled land from Bridgeway to
the present ferry landing. The 1915 Panama Pacific
Tnternational Exposition was the source of both the
fountain, designed by William B. Faville of Blies and
Faville and the guardian elephants designed by McKim, Meade
& White--gifts to the City by Faville. 1In 1377, the
fountain was completely recast and restored by private
resident subscription and in 1978 the World War I monument
was moved and re-dedicated, This beautiful plaza forms the
véry heart of Sausalito’s Historic District.

CASA MADRONA: .An Italiante mansion-turned-hotel, is listed
in the National Register of Historic Places. 1Its history is
too considerablE to be covered in this brief summary. Built
in 1885 for William Gront Barrett, a California Pioneer who
retired as Secretary Emeritus from the San Francisco Gas and
Electric Company; it became a hotel @1905 and has been
continuously operated as a lodging place since then--through
good and lean times. Threatened with demolition in 1965,
when it appeared it would slide down the hillside during
heavy rains, a special higtorical designation helped save
the building. It was restored and expanded with small
buildings below the original hotel which gives it a
"cottage" look.

- *

777 Bridgeway:; VILLAGE FAIR: Built as a parking garage in
1924 by Clinton DeWitt Mason of the Mason Distillery family.
A substantial, bulky, unadorn design suggests a no-nonsense
commercial structure. Exterior contrast paint gives the
illusion of more detail than actually exists.  The original
marquee remains but the gas pumps and Romanesgue arcade
detail no longer exist. Here is an example of a well
recycled building: dozens of small shops have a place in its
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cavernous interior; even the original pérking ramp has been
transformed into a unique stailrcase to the varied shop (#
levels. {,

763-771 Bridgeway; MEDICAL/DENTAL BUILDING: Built in 1958,

" the glass, aluminum and wood panels reflect the
"International Style" that was prevalent at that time. . Site
. of Knights of Pythias Hall. :

757 Bridgeway; NO NAME BAR: Built after the Fourth of July
fire in 1893 that destroyed nine buildings. A typical flat-
front Italiante. commercial structure that combined living
quarters upstairs and a saloon below. The original shlplap
facade has been stuccoed; the second floor window detail is
of interest and the entryway 1s enhanced by spectacular
jewel-like windows in the paneled entry door. Earlier names
include: Oak Grill, .Todt’'s Bar, and Herb’s Club Cafe.

755 Bridgeway:; GG OF SAUSALITO: Built in 1899, possibly as
a bakery; the bay windows were added between 1910 and 1925.
Originally shiplap, now stucco; the Italiante detail of the
upper windows and roofline remain and the modernized
storefront repeats the design elements of the upper floor.
The Porthole Tailor, once located here, is remembered as a
dark and cluttered shop where one could buy almost anything.

749 Bridgeway: J.D. BROWNE: Built in 1894, this is the most L
distinctive and authentic of Sausalito’s few remaining (i
wooden Victorian facades:. The square bays and embellished '
with ornamental moldlngs, the bracketed cornice is notable
as this bulldlng is a story taller than its nelghbors and at
a slight turn in Bridgeway so that the false- front is in
profile against the sky. Home of the Sausalito News from
1909 to 1925, it became a well-lowved landmark as the Tides
Bookstore in the 1950’'s where lectures and informal talks
were offered featuring noted and controversial figures such
as Eldridge Cleaver, Alan Watts and Anaias Nin. '

743-745 Bridgeway; ARCADE SHOPS: A wood and decorative
shingle building with Italiante details; built in 1894 as a

livery stable. A very distinctive sign across the top of
the bulldlng, TAMALPAIS STABLES (later TAMALPAIS GARAGE) has
been replaced by a shingle, false front roofline. The
arched stable entrance has been squared off, windows
enlarged, yet it looks much the same as in early
photographs. During the 1950's, the Sausalito Little
Theatre performed in the rear of the building with a side
entrance to the Plaza Bar, next door. )

737-741 Bridgeway: PATTERSON’S:' Built in 1894, the
Italiante roofline detail remains although the half-

timbering and stucco now suggest more of a Tudor theme. The

T
T
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second floor bays were added between 1910 and :1920. : Built
- by Firank Jukich whose Ferxy Restaurant was destroyed in the
1893 £fime, it is believed that this saloon was called
Railroad House. During the 1250’8, this building was known

‘as the Plaza Bar, an artist hangout.

7321 Bridgeway; GENE HILLER; is now housed .in what wyas City
Hall £or B0 years and Bank of Sausalito prior ke that. A
beautifully symmetrical two-story brick building with
classical details, it is one of the few downtown buildings
that remains little changed sinee its.cemstruction in 1894
as a bakery.. In-1909 it was:

renovaged" for the new bank
and the entryways were slightly altered at that time. The
fadade wag redently restored. . :

791-725 Bridgeway; BURLWOOD. GALEERY: :Two 1894 buildings
joined as one. gimilar, but not twins, they were Fastlake
style with square bays, false fronte and bracketed hoods.
' Now 19408's Mission style stuecco with hooded bays. A 1901
map indicates flats upstairs with saleon, barbershop and
cigar store below.

715 Bridgeway; WELLS FARGO: Built in 1924 and designed Dby
H.H§. Miller, it is reminiscent of ghe grand banking temples
- on a scale that works with its surreundings. Painted
sandstone, Népoleon Grey maxrble, ¢opper grillwork and
sashes, terra .cotta medallions and decorative frmieze combine
with high Romanesque arches flanked by Corinthian gapitals
in relief. The decorative elements are visible at close
range from the Excelsior Lane steps. Built by Bank of
sausalito for $72,000, it later became Ame icap Trust and

1-707 Bridgeway: DEL. MGL
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693-695 Bridgeway; GAMES PEOPLE PLAY: The gignificance of
this thiee<story structure is in its potential. The 1894
ardhitect s reridering along with later photos :show a
distinguished slanted-bay shiplap Italiante with filat
Corinthian columns and garland designed decoratien. Now all
is faced with asbestos shingles. Built to house the
Sausalito News with flats abeve, it was later J. Megei and
Co. Groceries, and for many years the Owl Cdfe "Eats at all
hours." ‘ ' : T

! Bxidfewax'ZLAE@ER@SLWRIO,JEWELRY: Built @1962,
Posgibly as two separate buildings that had a shared
roofline and separated below via an open hallway. Bay
windows once extended to the roofline. The Eureka Meat
Market and Sylvester Pearl’s real estate office are the most
remembered oceupants af this builkding. ‘ ‘

683-685 Bridgeway: SPEEDO: Built in 1924, this building is
typical.of the 1920’s row-houses in San Francisco’s Richmond
bistrict. A dropped corniee relieves the plainness of this
facade. Originally Marin Hardware, it was the office of
PG&E @ 1925-1967. '

.879-~681 Bridgeway; HANNA: A utilitarian brieck commereial
biilding congtrueted in 1915 for £he Sausalito Drug Company
whieh remained in this locatiom until @195E. DRropped
cornice and radiating arch relieve pldinness of the brick. .
Leeation of the €at and Fiddle restaurant and bar until - '
1996, the storefront was renevated in keeping with the
plaisiness.of the architecture. .

I T R

-

Bridgeway looking’south past Plaza Vina Del Mar in 1904
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675, Bridgeway: 2 b Budkkt in 1924 and known as the
Chambexr of Gommerc”VBullding, e f’_ade has hE&sn ratiodeled
ak least twice. Owiginally an’ all- glass recessed storefront
with a hlgh transoem and. stepped parapet roofllne, ‘the Bank
of America gave it more of a bank-like wppearance when it
moved into the building in 1946. .The pregent facade is
faced with a flecked, pollshed aggregate.

671-673 Bridgeway:; ODYSSEY: Built as the First Nationmal
1Bank of Saugalite in 1917; later Bank.ef Italy which became
Bank of dAmerica; in 1937 it was. Northwestern Bulld“ng and
Loan, then. Northwestern Savings and Loan. . & Black/Green

- maxble, flat facade -has replaced the bay w1ndow and misgion
gtyle of the orlganal

667-669 Bridgeway; HANSON ART GALLIERY: Within recent memoxry
known as Qle’s Bakery. A tmodern” building, 4n 1944
-desrgned by CNH Smith. £6% Itallan fefCHants | WMesdi and Ratto
- Mecci and Company, .Groceries. Relatlvely unaltered this
is the most representative of the group of commercral
bulldlngs of the period, Two- story glazed cream terra
cotta. - The recessed store front is a theme often repeated
on Brldgeway :

4 Princess: TIME AFTER TIME et al: Originally SCHNELL'S
HQUSE, hotel -- 1878. The appearance could .be described as
New England waterfront boardlng houge. A 19 OTp_J;ﬁ shows
bulldang w1th “Schnell's House“ @alnted on the fa‘ de which
is sllghtly v1s1ble today An expansion of the burldlng and
,ehixd story was added in 1890 The, .ground level has been
drastically remodeled ‘yet the overall appearance is
remarkably 51mllar Eo early. photos——hlghly v_srble at its
cornmer location. dJaceb Sohnell s boarding house ;and saloon
was one of Sausalito’s earliest bu81nesses——strateglcally
located opposlte the. orlgrnal ferryboat landlng

12 20 Princessg;. STARBUCKS et. al Constructed for Jean
Baptlste Baraty in 1892 to house hlS meat market on ‘the
.ground floor with’ famlly guarters above. Drop srdrng

. exterior features unusual square .bays with dormer 1ike hoods
and a frieze of vertical batten and board. Lower portion of
building remodeled with historic 1ntentlons in mind.

28-30 Prlncess,ﬂg-wm Descrlbed EL ‘a lfiodern
business.block" pric S . ugk

residenice and sto .oombined: The. Thomas Young famlly

.bu er shop occupled thig locataon untd.l World War II; the
ad agent concrete garage. added in ‘the- mld l920’ Both
bulldlngs were shlngled and a shopplng arcade created

between them.
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36-38 Princess; MARK REUBEN GALLERY: Built in 1894, early
maps show building set back from the street. Widening and (
grading of Princess Street combined with additions and , {
alterations to front of building have left it with an
undistinguished facade flush with the sidewalk. U.S. Post
Office before 1940; from 1940 to 1957 used as a plumbing
warehouse. In 1957 housed the Sausalito Hardware and

Plumbing Company.

40 Princesg: Three-story apartment building with drop
siding, square bay and dropped box cornice. A small portion
of the building appears in a 1910 photo: cornice, frieze,
brackets, colonettes--San Francisco stick style, originally.
A transitional building on Princess between residential and
commercial areas.

52 Princegs; TAPIA ART STUDIO: A veranda runs the length of
this facade, its roof supported with’®turned columns and
decorative sawn wood brackets. Built in 1894 as a residence
for Christopher H. Becker (Becker Building 664 Bridgeway),
older residents remember a plague near the entrance to this
house with the motto, "Small but Mine" in German. Dr. C.F.
Larsen, Sausalito’s "family doctor" for many years, lived
here at one time.

62 Princess; : A pioneer style, one-story wood
frame building with Gothic-revival elements and a low gable .
roof. The pointed cathedral window under the eaves suggest (-
a formed use: for 47 years a Christian Science Church. For
24 years before that, Sausalito City Hall. An 1869 map
shows a structure on thig site similar in size and shape to
the present building; maps from 1887 show the unusual
projectionsg on the front that exists today.

rine CABANA BONITA/BUCKEYE COTTAGE: This home
represents early bungalow style architecture in Sausalito.
Built in 1897 by George Urguhart, painting contractor, with
his shop on the lower floer, the Urgquhart name continued at
this address until 1967. The colonial revival veranda with
Tuscan columns commands a view from the top of Princess
Street. '

.77 Bulklev; (portals of) THE NOOK: Set against modern
apartments, the ivy c¢covered portals resemble an
.archeological remnant-a small reminder of old grandeur.
Handsome arches are set with radiating brick. Curved bricks
Form the column, topped by an Ionic capital. Architect
Willis Polk designed the Nook and portals for Francis Avery
in 1891--a Queen Anne shingle style house with turrets and
decorative shingle giding. It was demolished in 1961. The
Averys were early Sausalito settlers, prominent in business.
Francis Avery was secretary for the Sausalito Land and Ferry ‘
Company. 1 ﬁ




. H.C. -Gampbell;in 1§92 by M.E. Roundfree.:. On.a sheep,
 wooded Hillgide,; «theQugen Anne towers:-help to eapbure the
unochetructed view of the bay and town heldw-~a houser
fuﬂiqMELyA&a$igneﬁ%£oruits-siEEur Plain.shingle with
‘decstative retiingle relief, Doric . eelunns and stained glas
Wiﬂ&@staddnél,géﬂt detail. -In 1921;..Jdlius Quelle: . o
converted Ehe Fuilding into six gpafement units -and the lot
on the s&uth, -originally a Viectortan. garden was dewvedoped
with =zddition o the origimal-building in the early 1580's.

Tents TANBSIDE: ..Built «for-San Franeisco -attorney,

48 . Bulkléy: mesidence: A Queen Anne sﬁingle~s&ylé.h@use

]

- built prior torI894--prominent in-early photos:of .Sausalito

from the water, now difficult to see anything but its very
distinctive and graceful conical tower and roof with widows
walk., -~ o i T C e RN ' '

54 pulklewy; .ZEPHYR-COTTAGE: Many early residénces were
Jesaribed as eottagéd--Bften summer.rentals:mamed to
describe some feature of the buildimg or its setting--
similar to the English system of names rather than addresses
for homes. -Constfucted @ £831, this koo is wag profdinent in
. early phot8g but is difficult.to-see; new. Originally, a
Hes-elassieal facade: with bay. windows, the dppesdrancé has
been mnodiEisd: ever .the years with the cenversgion to
apartments. -« -~ - ‘ e o

a .

.83.:Princess: RICHARDS! HOUSE/GLEN BAKK: :This little:Greek
Favival "ebttade, built:=ih 1884, sedts - complétely Separate
from the bBustling. business distriet.: “The truncated-Hip
roof with widows walk is vwisible. from Bulkley Avenue.above;
the full length veranda is highly vigikble through the trees.
Built by Joha Richards, & mefibeyr of the Eipst Bodrd.ef
Trustees-of Sausalito (1893) atid ‘real estate éntrepreneur,
he built a numBer of cottages 4s réntals 1884-1893.-

- PRI . - - ¥ et e
21 :Princesss COPPER HOUSE: Was built.-as a wxesidence prior
'ﬁ©51887.ffA"tin?¢=@ﬁéH§t@@nyobd frame cottdge with:-gable

roof, -it seeds go: dling O Princess Street ‘with..a -~ 5
shozt, steép bIuff to one side. sUnaltéered; it suggests an
earlier way of life on Princess Street.

me..of :the earliest
Lot ;- constructed @1874.
buginegses that

‘Hhigportion OF :prid
dealt with wodd, ¢oal.and hay;-1891=54 maps inddcate wood
aﬁdfﬁoalféﬁd.éﬁ?ﬁésé*Wﬁ@éﬁ:ﬁseé?.Vﬁéh’.ﬁﬁmi901ﬂawéign reads,
ETﬁéﬁMésonfEﬁ§iﬂéé£iﬂ§i@oa;TDWéliﬁﬁgétHéaﬁed%éSteam%éHot
Watesr--Plumbing." Original drop "8iding exterior-kas been
shingled, windows slightly enlarged. . ~ 7. .
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ﬁacade and conflguratlon of thls bulldlng @ g

deal .over the yeaws with the. grewth and-the widening and
grading :of -Bridgeway. -Built im 1885 .for Thomas RByan, hotel
keeper; .eaxrly photds show a wood frame. bumldlng with veranda
similar to a Wild West movie set. A secand brick structure
was built by Ryan.in after 1901. Originally.-a narrow
alleyway separated sthe two. .In.fhe late 1920’'s, the two

= were joined as ene.and stuceoed with a. red Spanish tile

- falge -xoeof; the Italiante boxed earnice, brackets and
paneled frleze remain from the earlier version. Long known
.a8 RYAN'’S HOTEL, it was referred tg in an 1885 newspsper as
ngeaside Resort--first class saloon and. hotel ,
accommodatlons " :

629 Bridgeway: GIOVANNI’S PIZZA: A diminutive one-story

building; its false tile roof, brackets beneath eaves and
base-relief on the facade ech@ some @f the details of Ryan’s
Hotel. . Built between 1887 and 1891, its early uses . were an
office, saloon, barbershop.

; NIEE T: Bullt. between 1894 and 1901,
early photos show the bulldlng marked EXPRESS~—SAUSALITO
MILL ‘VALLEY, ROSS. VALLEY SAN -RAFAEL with.a gable reef and
shed-like .false £ront: An auto ferry service:was
inaugurated between Sausalito and San Francisgo .in.1922 and
the conversion of thig structure into a garage probably took
place :dhexrtly afigex Ehat- che-wall$ were rebuilt and-.the
‘gable regf was kept., "Ligted -as the Golden ‘date Garage in
. 1925, it was later.a restaurant, gandwicéh. shop, automobile
sales room and. grocery stare

) ; 7 : ANGET £ Built in 1914 by A. Gales as a
'Nlckelade©n, it laber became the Swagtika Theatre with a
"men only! loft. Ome memery is that .the walls were covered
with embossed metal as a precaution agalnst fire. A boxed
cornice with brackets and panelqﬁ ﬁrieze add- just a touch os
rdecoration -£6 this woed frame building: "Many restaurants
and bars have been.lecated here; among tham Lester
Heinscheimer, Steve’ s Tavern, Brldgeway Inn and The Flying
FlSh . : "

.. 2 o -OANDY, STORE : Bullt in 1924 opposite the
the Golden Gate Fegry‘d@, Iatiding (W922 1337}, brobably
,orlglnally a gandwigh shop for commuters. The gpen-area in
Aback of the bulldlng ‘wag -a stable for the various merchants
in town: Bazaty Mazrket, Fledler a. Sﬁ@ra,”Mgrln Fruit, etc.
It is best rememberéd as the Nite Hawk Cafe. A plain,
symmetrical onerskory structure; flat Tusean columns suggest
a bit of detail. : .
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605-609 Bridgeway: MARIN FRUIT CO.: in relief on this
stucco Facade suggest the continuing business of this 1920's
style grocery store. A number of Chinese names are
associated with this building but principally that of
groceryman "Willie Yee" after whom YEE TOCK CHEE PARK was
named. The south portion was constructed in 1912, the
northern addition @ 1924; this facade very likely dates from
that time and probably the entire block of businesses

. underwent new construction and face lifting when the new
"Golden Gate Ferry brought more automobiles to this end of

- town.

599-603 Bridgeway; TOWN AND COUNTRY ANTIQUES, et al: Best
known as the LINCOLN GARAGE. A two-story concrete structure
with cavernous center driveway/parking area and shops on
either gide. Constructed in 1924 to accommodate parking
and repair services for fifty autos, a ramp to the second
floor was built for parking and repair. Also known as
Gazzola Garage, Pistolesi Garage and Bert’s Garage.

595 Bridgeway; BAY GEAR, et al: Also known as PISTOLESI
FLATS. Built in 1907 by the Pistolesi family, Louis C.
Pistolesi was a Town Trustee and Town Attorney. An 1892
signboard near this location reads, "F.V. Pistolesi--teas
2nd coffees." Built as apartment house with 12 units, its
date of construction could relate to the influx of the new
regidents to Sausalito after the 1906 earthquake. A 3 1/2-
story shingled building with slanted bay windows.
Relatively unaltered. —

589 Bridgeway: FACTORY QUELET, et al: Built as six flats in
1904 by F.v. Pistolesi, it adjoins the building to the north
and they appear as one with their bays windows and wood
shakes covering. Both have shops below with apartments
above. :

585 Briddeway: UNIVERSAL GATLERY: A one-and-a-half-story

plain stucco facade with fansard roof. Flat, modified
Tuscan éolumns flank entry gate. Buillt in 1914 as the
Telephone Exchange (digital dialing did not take over in
Saugalito until the mid 1950's), it was constructed on the
gite of the third of a trio of Victorian cottages--the other
two remain to thée south. .
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579 -Bridgéway; GEORGIOU:  Bfiilt-in 1886.a8 .a.trio.of. Queen
A& “cOPLEFES - by yachtSman, Captain’ €harlesd CHitténden.
Rentdls “With pf@lelty te the yacht &€lub and eommanding view
of ‘thHe 'bay, ﬁhey were ramed, "Lolita", "Luéretial.and
"Lﬁrliﬁé" THE” Wéuses:-were raiesed ahd moved back when the
gtreet -was graded and the thir¥d buildifg to the north was
detiel iskid -in 1914 Altered litkle'by litble &ver the .
yE&EEE; “EHeY are fiw connedted By a shared baleovny and sawn
carpenté&” gothlc wodd decdratiensd have beefi addéd in extreme
exdess of’ briginal appearafnte:

569 Bridgewa AUSALITO BAKERY & CAFE: et al: Designed by
C. EBisHéxr. Eﬁd St an 1968 For 'Frank Mikiéh ds the QLD
FERRY GRIEL. 'A slanted bay® tallante febmmerdial building
with a symmetzicéal. faeade and heavy, dropped decorated box
corfiicé Whidh Hings over the secdnd stdry bay windows.
virtially ufaltered Bince its days asg-a saloon/restaurant
it bacame an art ‘gallgry and af¥tists co-op in:l1939--the old
restaurant kitehen put to use for artists’ family-style
dinners.

565 -Bridaeway; ZABIT. & ASSOCIATES INC.:  Buillt imn 1983 . this
Building repiaced a~-8mall cottdye built in the 1940/s. A
two-&fid-a=Half story bzitk bulldlng with high glass arch on
the 8econd stery. Coveéred with ivy, it almest seems hidden
between the bumldlngs @n either 51de.
561—563~Br1é’eWa EEXEER’S HOUSE: A boardaﬁg house built
in 1897; a portlon of it was used. &s €ity Hallubetween 1918-
1924. The unugual roof nearly defles descrlptlon 1n the
- fxront, mangard gables with pEdiment e, ey Wil
. Elanked. by gmall dvals, & half-roéu ( is.Bet: ihteo each
pediment .~ . Witidows: with-bratketed thoods: angset deep into
the roof sides. The open: veranda; fow. sup orted by plain
posts, onc : ith d spowl -arches.

"l

—




S .JV./Q\

wosneeneasll

5 asese




. 1910

1924
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REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYE"

A plctorlal "Survey“ publlshed with the title, SAUSALITO
THE GENEVA OF AMERIGA, included representatlves of res-
idential and commercial archltecture in the town plus
three panoramas, one of which is the neorthern portion of
the Higtoric District. Some of the photographs are
streetscapes, some are portraits of buildings and others
are cldseups of portiens of buildings. Listed below are

.structires repxesented eithei whole or im part in the
. SHD. The booklet igs in the SHS archives (PS 75-373).

'i San Fran01sco Yacht Club (H@r;zons)
2" Latige’s Landing: (S¢omas) -
5 Begker Building (Reyal Arts Co.)
7 Fiedler’s Store (Winships)
8 ‘Schnell,Property (Seven Seas)
14 ‘Casa Madrcna
17 Bar (No Nafie)
18 '‘Bakery (GG of Sausallto)
19 Sausalito News (J.D. Browne)
20 Tamalpais Stables (Arcade Shops)
21 Tafé {Patterson’s) "
22 Bank Building (Gené Hiller) '
23 721725 Bridgeway {(Burlwood Gallery)
25 FEl Monite Hotel (Del Monte)
26 Mecci & €o. (Games People Play) -
27 687- -691 Bridgeway (Lapperts/Trio Jewelry) i
33 S&hnell’s House bir/hotel (Time After Time) '
34 Bagdty ‘Building " (Starbucks)
41 'Thé Nook,
42 Lame51de *
43 & °
44 Resldences
- 4% Pplufiber (salvage Shop)
48 'Ryan s Hotel bér/hotel (Crazy Shirt)
55
56 Plstslesl Buildings.’ (Bay Bear & Fact@ry Outlet)
60 cafe (Sausallto Bakery ‘& Cafe)

A new tax assessment system was developed for Sausallto
and a manual designed for valiidtion using. .ganple
structures with photos and déscriptigns of aterials

.used. The book, "REPORT--Equalizationigf Tax AsseSsment-

Town of Sausalito California--1924" is in{the SHS-
archives (75-2324) and 01tes the follow1ng structures

1 San Francisco Yacht Club (Horlzons)
10 Sausalito Hotel

15 Mason’s Garage (Village Failr)

24 Bank of Sausalito (Wells Fargo)

60 01ld Ferry Grill (Saus. Bakery & Cafe)

18




1968.

1974-"17

1976

1980

HERE TODAY--SAN FRANCISCO!S ARCHITECTURAL HERITAGE (The
Historic Sites Project for the Junior League of San
Francigeo, Ing.) Text by Olmstead and Watkins.
Chronicle Publishers, 1968. Five SHD ptructures gre
inciuded in their survey of Sausalito om p. 321. The
information, however, is completely incorrect and was

.not corrected in amy recent edition.

"2 -.Glad Hand (Scomas)
10 Sausaliteo Hotel
14 Casa Madrona

19 Tides (J.D. Browne)
42 Laneside

The Marin County Board of Supervisors reguested an in-
ventory of "Historical Resourceg" as part of a statewide
survey by the Department of .the Interior. An ipnitial
1ist was submitted to6 the City in February, 1975, and in
1977. 63 inventories of buildings and sites were sub-
mitted to the State Office of Historic Preservation by
the Sausalito Landmarks Board. Much of the information
has been updated since then. The following SHD
gtructures and sites were included:

NAME: X OUR FILE NO. . STATE FILE NO.

1 Horizons/Tops.  FT=347

2 Scomas T77=2346

9 Saugalito Hotel 77-364 00190
14 Cgga Madnona 77-323

19 J.D. Browne 77-321
33 Schnell’s House 77339
40 Residence 77-360 . 00199
41 Portals of the Nook 77-376
42 Laneside - 77-320 00193
45 @len Bank ' 77-359
62 Dextexr’s House T77-361

In conmection with the Bicentennial, funds were raised
to restore the fountain in Plaza Vina Del Max.. The
Plaza at that time was designated as a Historical Point
of Interest by the State of California NO MRN 002.

Historic District survey by. the Sausalite Landmarks
Board and the Sausalito Histowical Society. - Sixty-three
buildings and sites invetitoried, .researched,
photographed and described. Numbers to the left of the
names (above) indicate file number in SHS archives.

1




BIBLIOGRAPHY

e

Magazine -drticles and books that do exist regarding
Ssusalito’s higtory were not considered for use as reference
- 35 the information they contain is substantially incorrect.
A great. deal of histowical information already existed on
all sites; each structure was individually researched

from newspapers, old city records and maps, documents and
photos from the Sausalito Historieal Sotiety. Listed below
are the major sources (all autho¥s unknown); major "memory
resources" are also listed. -

NEWSPAPERS in SHS archives:

SAUSALITO NEWS* Bound volumes 1-42 (1885-1926) In its early
vears the NEWS was the offieiazl Marin County publication
covering world and local ewents.

DIRECTORIES in SHS -archives:

%1878-79; McKenny'’s District Directory

*1887 Marin County Directory (Photocepy of Saucelito pages)

#1892 "The San Francisco Blue Boock and Pacific Coast Elite
Directory™”

*1892 Great Register of Marin County (includes national
origin and occupation),

*1902 Index of Greéat Register of Marin County

*1904 Marin County Directory .

%1925 The Indeperndent’s Marin County Directory

*Marin County Directory 1946-47; 1949-50; 1954-55; 1960

MAPS, PLAT BOOKS AND CITY DOGCUMENTS, SHS archives and City of
SAUSALITO

"Town of Sausalito--Revalation of Real Estate Appraisal

Record--1924" | ‘
"Report Equalization of Tax Assessment--Town of Sausalito,

California, 1924"

Minutes of the City Council of the Gity of Sausalito
1893-1579 o :

Block Book--Town of Sausalito @ 1949

Plat Book @ 1894 (updated) .
SANBORN--CITY OF SAUSALITO (book) 1919 updated to 1955
SANBORN MARS: years 1887, 1891, 1894, 1901, 1919
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RESOURCES

Ralph K. (Swede) Pederson (deceased).
Russell Jukigh (deceased)

Fred Nau (deceased)

Helen Tom

Vivian and Paullne Ratto -

Fred Perry (deceased) .

Lee Pierachini (deceased)

Jack Pierachini (deceasged)

Edward Souza (deceased)

Russell McGowan (deceased)

Marie Jukich

Wilma Young

John Donahue

Jack Gazzola

Laura Treat

Clyde Trudell

Earl Dunphy (deceased)

John Harlan (deceased)
Caroline Jewetgﬂ




Prepared for the Sausalito Higtoric Landmarks Board.
by Elizabeth Robinson
Archiviet, Sausalito Historical Society, 1880
Updated by Seth Hodgson, 1997 -

Research: dJack Tracy (deceased)
Dave Hodgson
Neil Shaver (deceased)
Tom Hoover
pavid Benoit
Tom Jacobs, DDS.

and others who contributed
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